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GAUTAM DUTTA, ESQ. (State Bar No. 199326)

39270 Paseo Padre Parkway # 206
Fremont, CA 94538
Telephone: 415.236.2048

Email: Dutta@ BusinessandElectionLaw.com

Fax: 213.405.2416 -
Attorney for Plaintiffs

JEREMY COLTHARP and EDITH FRAZIER

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

JEREMY COLTHARP, an

‘individual,

EDITH FRAZIER, an individual,
Plaintiffs;
VS.
LARRY HERRERA, in only his
official capacity as City Clerk for the
City of Long Beach, and DOES 1-5;

Defendants.

CASE NO.

COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

FEDERAL JURISDICTION INVOKED
PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. §1331,
§1983, AND §1367

INTRODUCTION
1. Plaintiffs Jeremy Coltharp and Edith Frazier bring this as-applied

constitutional challenge to defend and vindicate every voter’s fundamental right to

express his or her political beliefs regarding proposed ballot measures.

2. Plaintiffs ask the Court to declare that California Elections Code §105

is unconstitutional, for that statute forced Defendant Herrera not to count the

lawfully executed signatures of Ms. Frazier and other City of Long Beach voters

who changed their voter-registration address after they signed Mr. Coltharp’s

proposed ballot measure (the “Ballot Measure”).

3. Furthermore, Defendant Herrera refused to count the lawfully executed
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signatures of other voters who had signed the Petition, in violation of federal and
state law.

4. As a result, Defendant Herrera refused to count 97 percent of the
43,159 signatures collected by Mr. Coltharp. In so doing, Defendant Herrera
blocked the Ballot Measure from qualifying for a special’ election.

5. Plaintiffs ask that Defendant Herrera be ordered to count all 43,159
signatures that were lawfully executed by voters who supported the Ballot
Measure. In this manner, Defendant Herrera will properly determine whether Mr.
Coltharp submitted the required number of signatures to qualify the Ballot Measure
for a special election. '

6. Alternatively, Plaintiffs ask that Defendant Herrera be ordered to place

the Ballot Measure on the City of Long Beach’s next regularly scheduled election

(April 8, 2014) — because it is undisputed that Mr. Coltharp has submitted the
required number of signatures to qualify the Ballot Measure for that election.
THE PARTIES

7. Plaintiffs J eremy Coltharp and Edith Frazier live in, and are registered

to vote in, the City of Long Beach (the “City”). Mr. Coltharp proposed the ballot
measure at issue, and both he and Ms. Frazier signed a petition in support of that
ballot measure. |

8. Defendant Larry Herrera, in his official capacity as City Clerk, serves

as the City’s chief elections officer; and administers and enforces the Elections

Code with respect to the City’s elections.”

! If held as a standalone election, a special election called for a ballot measure must be held

within 88 to 103 days after the election has been ordered; if held as a consolidated election, that
election may be held within 180 days after the election has been ordered. See Elections Code
§§1405(a) & (a)(1).

Plaintiffs do not know the true names and capacities of Defendants DOES 1 through 5,
and therefore sue those Defendants by fictitious names. Based on his information and belief,
Plaintiffs allege that each of the fictitiously named Defendants is in some manner responsible for
the actions described in this Complaint. When the true identities and capacities of those
fictitiously named Defendants are determined, Plaintiffs will seek leave to amend this Complaint
to insert those identities and capacities.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. This Court has jurisdiction to hear Plaintiffs’ claims pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §1331 (federal-question jurisdiction), 28 U.S.C. §1983 (jurisdiction for
federal civil-rights violations), and 28 U.S.C. §1‘367 (supplemental jurisdiction).
The Court is a proper venue for this action, for Defendant Herrera performs the
duties of his office within the Centrél District of California.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
General Background: California Initiative Law

10.  The California Constitution (art. ii §1) confers on voters the right to
propose and enact legislation through ballot measures (initiatives).

11.  If a proposed ballot measure has been signed by at least 15 percent of
its registered voters, the City must either (a) enact that ballot measure into law, or
(b) call a special election asking the voters to decide whether to enact that ballot
measure into law.’

12.  If a proposed ballot measure has been signed by at least 10 percent of

its registered voters, the City must either (a) enact that ballot measure into law, (b)

call a special election asking the voters to decide whether to enact that ballot

measure into law, or (c) place that ballot measure on the next regularly scheduled
City election.” It would cost the City nearly $1.5 million to administef a special
election.

13. Instead of examining every voter signature submitted by a proponent
of a ballot measure, an election official may evaluate a small, 3 percent sample. If
the number of valid signatures within that sample is within 95 to 110 percent of the
prorated number of signatures required to qualify for a special election or regularly
scheduled election, then the election official must fully examine the remaining 97

percent of signatures.” In so doing, the election official would determine whether

3 Elections Code §9214.
Elections Code §9215 & §1405.
Elections Code §9115(b).
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the ballot measure qualifies for a special or regularly scheduled election.

14.  If, however, the number of valid signatures within that sample totals to
at least 110 percent of the prorated number of signatures required to qualify for a
special or regularly scheduled election, then the elections official must certify that
the ballot measure has qualified for either a special election (at least 15 percent of
voter signatures required) or the City’s next regularly scheduled election (at least 10
percent of voter signatures 1requi1red).6

15.  Under state law, the City Council has the power to call a special
election for.any proposed ballot measure that receives at least 10 percent voter
support.7 |

16.  After a proposed ballot measure has been given an official title and
summary, the proponent of that ballot measure must collect the required number of
voter signatures within 180 days.”

17.  Under Elections Code §100, every voter who is registered to vote in
the City has the right to sign any proposed ballot measure.

18. However, under Elections Code §105, election officials are banned
from counting the signature of any voter whose address listed on a proposed ballot
measure does not match the address listed for that voter in the official voter
database — even if that voter had moved and re-registered to vote after signing the
proposed ballot measure.

19.  In contrast, if a voter moves affer her vote-by-mail ballot has been
received by election officials, her vote will be counted under California law.’

20.  Moreover, under federal law, if a voter moves within 30 days of a
Presidential election, she can vote using her old address, either by vote-by-mail or

in person — even if she has moved out of state."’

6 Elections Code §9115, §9214 & §9215.

! Elections Code §9215(b).

8 Elections Code §9208.

i Elections Code §3019. ' . v
10 National Voter Registration Act of 1993, codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1(e)
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Mr. Coltharp’s Proposed Ballot Measure

21.  The California Compassionate Use Act'' and Medical Marijuana
Program Act'? give every patient the right to cultivate and possess medical
marijuana.

22.  Pursuant to those state statutes, Mr. Coltharp filed the Ballot Measure
with Defendant Herrera. The Ballot Measure would authorize the City to regulate
and tax dispensaries of medical marijuana.

23.  On August 21, 2012, Defendant Herrera issued a letter (attached as
Exhibit 1) containing the ballot title and summary for the Ballot Measure.

24. Immediately afterwards, Mr. Coltharp asked voters to sign a petition
(the “Petition”, attached as Exhibit 2) asking that the Ballot Measure be placed on
the ballot.

25.  On February 8, 2013, Mr. Coltharp submitted to the Clerk 28 boxes
containing 43,159 signatures in support of the Petition. Two of those signatures
were lawfully executed by Mr. Coltharp and Ms. Frazier.

Numerical Basis for the City Clerk’s (Defendant Herrera’s )’Calculations

26.  On March 7 and 8, 2013, Defendant Herrera told Mr. Coltharp that his
Petition did not contain the number of signatures required to qualify the Ballot
Measure for a special election.'

27. Before reaching that conclusion, Defendant Herrera stated that (1) the
City had a total of 223,617 registered voters, and (2) to qualify for a special

election, the Petition was required to contain at least 33,543 signatures (i.e., 15

percent of the 223,617 registered voters)."*

28. Instead of examining all 43,159 signatures submitted by Mr. Coltharp,

H Health & Safety Code §11362.5.
12 Health & Safety Code §11362.7 et seq.
13 Although Defendant Herrera’s Mar. 7, 2013 letter (attached as Exh. 3) stated that the
Petition had “failed”, he subsequently clarified to Plaintiffs’ counsel that he takes no position on
whether the Petition qualified for the City’s next regularly scheduled election.

Defendant Herrera’s Signature Verification Calculations for the Petition, attached as Exh.
4.
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Defendant Herrera chose to examine only a 3 percent sample (i.e., 1,295 signatures)
of those signatures.
29. Based on the statutory formula set forth above,"” Defendant Herrera

stated that if at least 1,107 of the 1,295 signatures'® were deemed valid, the Ballot

Measure would qualify outright for a special election.
30. Based on the statutory formula set forth above,!” Defendant Herrera

stated that if between 957 and 1,106 of the 1,295 signatures'® were deemed valid,

he would be legally required to examine the remaining 41,864 (97 percent)
signatures submitted by Mr. Coltharp. In so doing, he would determine whether the
Ballot had received the support of at least 15 percent of the City’s voters, and thus
qualified for a special election.

31. Based on the statutory formula set forth above,' if at least 738 of the
1,295 signatures®® were deemed valid, the City would be legally required to place

the Ballot Measure on the ballot no later than the next regularly scheduled election
(April 8, 2014).
Results of the City Clerk’s Examination of 3 Percent Sample
32.  After examining 1,295 of the 43,159 voter signatures, Defendant
Herrera told Mr. Coltharp that his Ballot Measure did not qualify for a special

13 See {{[11-14 supra; Defendant Herrera’s Signature Verification Calculations for the

Petition, attached as Exh. 4.
I.e., 110 percent of the prorated amount of signatures required to qualify for a special
election. Here, the 1,295-signature sample was multiplied by the proration factor of 0.7771959
[i.e., 33,543 (15 percent of the City’s 223,617 voters) divided by 43,159 (the total number of
s1gnatures submitted by Mr. Coltharp)], then multiplied by 1.1 (i.e., 110 percent).
See supra note 15.
Le., between 95 to 110 percent of the prorated amount of 33,543 signatures (i.e., 15
percent of the City’s 223,617 voters) required to qualify for a special election. Here, the 1,295-
signature sample was multiplied by the proration factor of 0.7771959 [i.e., 33,543 (15 percent of
the City’s voters) divided by 43,159 (the total number of signatures submitted by Mr. Coltharp)],
then multiplied by 0.95 (i.e., 95 percent)

19 See supra note 15.
Le., 110 percent of the prorated amount of 22,362 signatures (i.e., 10 percent of the City’s
223,617 Voters) to qualify for a regularly scheduled election. Here, the 1,295-signature sample
was multiplied by the proration factor of 0.5181306 [i.e., 22,362 (10 percent of the City’s 223,617
voters) divided by 43,159 (the total number of signatures submitted by Mr. Coltharp)], then
multiplied by 1.1 (i.e., 110 percent).

18

20
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election.
33.  Specifically, Defendant Herrera deemed 939 of the 1,295 voter

signatures to be valid. Thus, according to Defendant Herrera, the Petition fell 18

signatures short of the 957 voter signatures necessary to trigger a full, 100 percent
examination gf all 43,159 signatures.”'

34. Significantly, it is undisputed that Mr. Coltharp submitted the number
of signatures required to qualify for the City’s next regularly scheduled election
(April 8,2014). To qualify for a regularly scheduled election, Mr. Coltharp was
required to submit 738 valid signatures. According to Defendant Herrera, Mr.
Coltharp submitted 939 valid signatures — an excess of 201 signatures.

35. To date, Defendant Herrera has refused to certify to the City Council

- that the Ballot Measure would qualify for the City’s April 8, 2014 regularly

scheduled election.
The City Clerk’s Errors

36. Defendant Herrera challenged 356 signatures from the 1,295-signature
sample.”?

37.  After Defendant Herrera notified Mr. Coltharp that the Ballot Measure |
did not qualify for a special election, Mr. Coltharp carefully examined the 356
signatures that had been challenged by Defendant Herrera. Toward this end, Mr.
Coltharp made repeated visits to the City Clerk’s office in Long Beach, as well as
the Los Angeles County Registrar’s office in Norwalk.

38.  Of those 356 signatures, Defendant Herrera unlawfully did not count
the signatures of at least 18 voters.”

39.  Of those 18 voters, 5 voters were not counted because they allegedly

U Defendant Herrera’s Signature Verification Calculations for the Petition, attached as Exh.
4.
2 Defendant Herrera’s Mar. 7, 2013 Petition Statistics, attached as Exh. 5, at 2.
= To honor the confidentiality of voter-registration files, Plaintiffs will identify the voters
only by name and Petition signature number (see notes 25 through 28 infra). Should the Court

require their actual addresses, Plaintiffs will provide them under seal.
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had unproven voter-registration status. Their signatures were not counted due to
what Defendant Herrera called “Fatal Pending” errors.**

40.  Subsequently, Mr. Coltharp discovered errors that had prompted
Defendant Herrera not to count the signatures of those 5 voters. In response to Mr.
Coltharp’s inquiries, the Los Angeles County Registrar’s office corrected two of
those errors.”> Moreover, the signatures of three other voters should also have been
counted, but were not counted due to errors made by Defendant Herrera.”®

41.  Accordingly, the signatures of all 5 voters mentioned above should
have been counted.

42. An additional 11 voters changed their voter-registration address after
they had signed Mr. Coltharp’s Petition. Those voters continue to live within the
City, but now reside at a different address.

43.  Thus, those 11 voters (including Plaintiff Edith Frazier) had the right
to sign the Petition under Elections Code §100. However, Defendant Herrera did
not count their signatures, on account of Elections Code §105 — which bans a
voter’s signature from being counted if her address listed on the Petition did not
match her address listed on the voter-registration database. Thus, the signatures of
those 11 voters were classified under the category of “Different Address™).”

44. Finally, the signatures of 2 voters were erroneously not counted (they

* Idoat2,

2 The Los Angeles County Registrar had entered incorrect addresses for Claydale Bird
(Petition signature no. 38559) and Raul Nunez (Petltlon signature no. 40752), but corrected those
addresses after examining Mr. Coltharp’s inquiries.

Those three voters were Albert Jones (Petition signature no. 22183 — the address listed on
the voter-registration database was misread by Defendant Herrera); Clarke Dviche (Petition
signature no. 9 — name was misspelled by Defendant Herrera); and Bart Verner (Petition signature
no. 10842 — Defendant Herrera erroneously stated that his address was not located within the
C1ty, when it in fact was located with the City).

7 Id. at2. The 11 Long Beach voters are Edith Frazier (Petition signature no. 43110),
Lamar Wormsley (Petition signature no. 3865), Georgina Hill (Petition signature no. 6546),
Martin Thelonious (Petition signature no. 10110), Marivica Shyman (Petition signature no.
15637), Harvey Hunt (Petition signature no. 17866), Andrew Orlando (Petition signature no.
19609), Silvia Sandoval (Petition signature no. 28740), Everett Carmody (Petition signature no.
32955), Awet Teame (Petition signature no. 34141), and Margaret Olszewski (Petition signature
no. 42591).
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were misclassified under the category of “Different Address”), because Defendant
Herrera had looked up the voter registration of the wrong names.”®
Plaintiffs’ Rejected Offer of Compromise

45.  As shown earlier, it is undisputed that Mr. Coltharp submitted
sufficient signatures in order to qualify his Ballot Measﬁre for the City’s next
regularly scheduled election.

46.  During phone conversations on April 8 and 10, 2013 and in an April
18, 2013 letter,” Plaintiffs offered to waive their potential right to a special
election, if the City Clerk agreed to place the Ballot Measure on the April §, 2014
City election (i.e., the next regularly scheduled City election). By not holding a
special election, the City taxpayers will save nearly $1.5 million. |

47.  Regrettably, the City Clerk did not agree to Plaintiffs’ proposed
compromise. On April 8 and 10, 2013, Plaintiffs told Defendant Herrera, through
his counsel (the City Attorney’s office), that they would file a lawsuit against him
in order to vindicate their fundamental rights. Plaintiffs further indicated that their
lawsuit would seek reasonable costs and attorney’s fees from the City to the fullest
extent allowable by law.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Voters Who Moved Within the City)

As-Applied Violation of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983
(Amendments I & XTIV and 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

48.  The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by
reference.

49.  The conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ fundamental

2% Instead of examining the voter registration of Milton Snell (Petition signature no. 4651),

Defendant Herrera mistakenly examined the registration of Matt Suey (who is registered to vote
at a different address). Furthermore, Defendant Herrera erroneously did not locate the correct
address for Valerie Gallaher Hall (Petition signature no. 10101), because he had looked under the
surname of “Hall”, not “Gallaher Hall”.

» Attached as Exh. 6.
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right to support and place a ballot measure on the City ballot, for he refused to
count the signatures of voters who re-registered their voter-registration address
after they had signed Mr. Coltharp’s Petition. That fundamental right is protected
under the United States Constitution (Amendments I & XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

50.  Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, because Defendant Herrera
unlawfully banned them from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the City
ballot. At the same time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public funds to block
the Ballot Initiative from appearing-on the City ballot. Consequently, Plaintiffs are
entitled to declaratory and permanént injunctive relief to restrain Defendant Herrera
from implementing Elections Code §105 with respect to the Ballot Initiative and
other proposed ballot measures.

51.  An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant
Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under the United
States Constitution (Amendments I & XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983. The parties
therefore need a declaration from the Court regarding whether Defendant Herrera’s
actions, as alleged in this Complaint, violated the United States Constitution
(Amendments I & XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Voters Who Moved Within the City)

| AS—Applied Violation of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983
(Due Process Clause, Amendment XIV, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

52.  The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by
reference.

53. The conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ fundamental
right to support and place a ballot measure on the City ballot, for he refused to
count the signatures of voters who re-registered their voter-registration address
after they had signed Mr. Coltharp’s Petition. That fundamental right is protected

under the United States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and
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42 U.S.C. §1983.

54.  Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, because Defendant Herrera
unlawfully banned them from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the City
ballot. At the same time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public funds to block
the Ballot Initiative from appearing on the City ballot. Consequently, Plaintiffs are
entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive relief to restrain Defendant Herrera
from implementing Elections Code §105 with respect to the Ballot Initiative and
other proposed ballot measures.

55.  An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant
Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under the United
States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.
The parties therefore need a declaration from the Court regarding whether
Defendant Herrera’s actions, as alleged in this Complaint, violated the United
States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Refusal to Count Lawfully Executed Voter
Signatures)
As-Applied Violation of California Law (Supplemental Claim)
(California Constitution art. ii §1 & Elections Code §100)

By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

56. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by

reference.
| 57.  The conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ right to support

and place a ballot measure on the City ballot. Namely, he refused to count lawfully
executed voter signatures supporting the Petition, in violation of California
Constitution art. i1 §1 and Elections Code §100.

58.  Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, because by disqualifying those
lawfully executed voter signatures, Defendant Herrera unlawfully banned them

from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the ‘City’s ballot. At the same
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time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public funds to disqualify those voter
signatures. Cénsequently, Plaintiffs are entitled to declaratory and permanent
injunctive relief to restrain Defendant Herrera from further violating Elections Code
§100 with respect to the Ballot Initiative and other proposed ballot measures.

59.  An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant
Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under California
Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections Code §100. The parties therefore need a
declaration from the Court regarding whether Defendant Herrera’s actions, as
alleged in this Complaint, violated California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections
Code §100.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Refusal to Count Lawfully Executed Voter
Signatures)
As-Applied Violation of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983
(Due Process Clause, Amendment XIV, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

60. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by
reference.

61. The conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ fundamental
right to support and place a ballot measure on the City ballot, for he refused to
count voter signatures that were lawfully executed in support of the Ballot Measure.
That fundamental right is protected under the United States Constitution’s Due
Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983. |

62. Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, because by disqualifying those
lawfully executed voter signatures, Defendant Herrera Defendant Herrera
unlawfully banned them from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the City’s
ballot. At the same time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public funds to
disqualify those voter signatures. Consequently, Plaintiffs are entitled to

declaratory and permanent injunctive relief to restrain Defendant Herrera from
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further violating the United States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment
X1IV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983 with respect to the Ballot Initiative and other proposed
ballot measures.

63. An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant

Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under the United

~ States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

The parties therefore need a declaration from the Court regarding whether
Defendant Herrera’s actions, Vas alleged in this Complaint, violated the United
States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Refusal to Place Ballot Measure on the Ballot)
As-Applied Violation of California Law (Supplemental Claim)
(California Constitution art. ii §1 & Elections Code §9215)

By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

64. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by
reference.

65. Alternaitively, the conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’
right to support and place a ballot measure on the City ballot. Namely, he refused
to place the Ballot Measure on the City’s next regularly scheduled election (April 8,
2014), in violation of California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections Code §9215.

66. Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, becéuse Defendant Herrera
unlawfully banned them from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the City’s
April 8, 2014 ballot. At the same time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public
funds to block the Ballot Initiative from appearing on the City’s April §, 2014
ballot. Consequently, Plaintiffs are entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive
relief to order Defendant Herrera to comply with California Constitution art. ii §1
and Elections Code §9215 with respect to the Ballot Initiative and other proposed
ballot measures.

67. An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant
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Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under California
Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections Code §9215. The parties therefore need a
declaration from the Court regarding whether Defendant Herrera’s actions, as
alleged in this Complaint, violated California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections
Code §9215.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF (Refusal to Place Ballot Measure on the Ballot)
As-Applied Violation of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983
(Due Process Clause, Amendment XIV, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983)

By Plaintiffs Coltharp and Frazier Against Defendant Herrera

68.  The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 47 are hereby incorporated by
reference.

69.  Alternatively, the conduct of Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’
fundamental right to support and place a ballot measure on the City ballot. Namely,
he refused to place the Ballot Measure on the City’s next regularly scheduled
election (April 8, 2014). That fundamental right is protected under the United

- States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

70.  Plaintiffs suffered irreparable harm, because Defendant Herrera
unlawfully banned them from supporting and placing a ballot measure on the City’s
April 8, 2014 ballot. At the same time, Defendant Herrera illegally spent public
funds to block the Ballot Initiative from appearing on the City’s April 8, 2014
ballot. Consequently, Plaintiffs are entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive
relief to restrain Defendant Herrera from further violating the United States
Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.

71.  An actual controversy now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant
Herrera as to whether Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’ rights under the United
States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.
The parties therefore need a declaration from the Court regarding whether

Defendant Herrera’s actions, as alleged in this Complaint, violated the United
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States Constitution’s Due Process Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983.
REQUEST FOR RELIEF

Plaintiffs Jeremy Coltharp and Edith Frazier request the following relief from
the Court:

A.  That the Court declare that Elections Code §105 is unconstitutional
and unenforceable, as applied to voters who re-registered their voter-registration
address after they had signed Mr. Coltharp’s Petition.

B.  That the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’
fundamental rights under the United States Constitution (Amendments I & XIV &
Due Process Clause) and 42 U.S.C. §1983, by (1) implementing and enforcing
Elections Code §105 as to Mr. Coltharp’s Petition and Ballot Measure, and (2)
illegally spending public funds to implement and enforce Elections Code §105.

C.  That the Court issue a preliminary injunction prohibiting Defendant
Herrera, and all persons acting under his direction and control, (1) from
implementing and enforcing Elections Code §105 as to Mr. Coltharp’s Petition and
Ballot Measure, and (2) from illegally spending public funds to implement and
enforce Elections Code §105.

- D.  That the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated Plaintiffs’
fundamental rights under California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections Code
§10()’, by refusing to count the lawfully executed signatures of voters who supported
Mr. Coltharp’s Ballot Initiative.

E.  That the Court order Defendant Herrera, and all persons acting under
his direction and control, to fully examine all 43,159 signatures submitted by Mr.
Coltharp, in order to determine whether his Ballot Measure qualifies for a special
election.

F.  That the Court order Defendant Herrera, and all persons acting under
his direction and control, to count all voter signatures that were lawfully executed

in support of the Petition.
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G. Alternatively, that the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated
Plaintiffs’ fundamental rights under California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections
Code §9215, by (1) refusing to place the Ballot Measure on the April 8, 2014 City
ballot, and (2) illegally spending public funds to do so.

H. Alternatively, that the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated
Plaintiffs’ fundamental rights under the United States Constitution’s Due Process
Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983, by (1) refusing to place the Ballot’
Measure on the April 8, 2014 City ballot, and (2) illegally spending public funds to
do so. '

I Alternatively, that the Court order Defendant Herrera to place Mr.
Coltharp’s Ballot Measure on the April 8, 2014 City ballot.

J. That the Court award Plaintiffs all reasonable costs and expenses,
including attorney’s fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988(b) and California Civil Code
of Procedure §1021.5.

K.  That the Court award Plaintiffs all other relief deemed just and

equitable.

DATED: May 7, 2013

Respectfully submitted,

By:

GAUTAM DUTTA, ESQ.
Attorney for Plaintiffs
JEREMY COLTHARP AND
EDITH FRAZIER

16 - COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF




May.07.2013 10:14 AM BAGE. 1/ 17

1 G. Altcmatively, that the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated
2 | Plaintiffs’ fundamental rights under California Constitution art. ii §1 and Elections
3 {| Code §92135, by (1) refusing to place the Ballot Measure on the April 8, 2014 City
4 | ballot, and (2) illegally spending public funds to do so.

H.  Alternatively, that the Court declare that Defendant Herrera violated
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6 | Plaintiffs’ fundamental rights under the United States Constitution’s Due Process
7 | Clause (Amendment XIV) and 42 U.S.C. §1983, by (1) refusing to place the Ballot
8 | Measure on the April 8, 2014 City ba]iot, and (2) illegally spending public funds to
9 | doso.

10 L Alternatively, that the Court order Defendant Herrera to place Mr.

11 | Coltharp’s Ballot Measure on the April 8, 2014 City ballot.

12 J. That the Court award Plaintiffs all reasonable costs and expenses,

13 | including attorney’s fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988(b) and California Civil Code
14 | of Procedure §1021.5,

15 K.  That the Court award Plaintiffs all other relief deemed just and

16 | equitable,

17
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19 | DATED: May 7, 2013
20
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22 %M o 495[:7&\_;
By:
23 “GAUTAM DUTTA, ESQ.
24 Attorney for Plaintiffs
25 JEREMY COLTHARP AND
26 EDITH FRAZIER
27
28
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CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
Long Beach, California
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LARRY HERRERA ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION
City Clerk ' Monigue De Lo Garzs
Admiminlrative Qffirer

ELECTIONE BUREAU

Posnam Daviz

AUQUSt 21 ) 201 2 City Clerk Huremu Mangger

LEGISLATIVE BUREAU

Merignae Nakagowa
Cify Clerk Buteay Mitnagor

Jeremy Coltharp
7034 E. Rendina Street
Long Beach, CA 90815

Dear Mr. Coltharp,

Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 9203, enclosed is the ballot title and
summary of the proposed measure you submitted fo this office on August 6, 2012,
refating to regulation of medical marijuana collectives.

Prior to circulating the petition, be sure that you have achieved compliance with the
requirements of the Elections Code, commencing with Section 9200 through 9228, and
Long Beach Municipal Code Chapter 1.22.

Once you meet publication requirements of Election Code Section 8205, you will then
have 180 days to file a petition, from the date upon which you receive the ballot fitle and
summary provided herein. The petition must be filed during normal business hours; and
if the petition is not filed within the time period permitted, the petition shall be vold for al
purposes.

As of May 21, 2012, the Los Angeles County Registrar's web site reports that there are
223,617 registered voters in the City of Long Beach; however, the signature
qualification thresholds prescribed by Election Code Sections 9215 and 92186, is not
certain until you publish the Notice of Intention.

I can be reached at (562) 570-6489, should you need to speak with me.

Sincerely,

ﬂL L-L-f‘vn»-
Lacrar?Herrera
City Clerk

Fxh. |

333 Woat QCEAN BOULBVARD, Lossy LEVEL, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA 90802 O
TRLEPHONE (562) 570-6101 ¥ax (562) 570-6788 EMAIL: CUrvOLERKIPLONGBRACH.COY
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BALLOT TITLE AND SUMMARY

Ballot Title: Regulation of Medical Marijuana Collectives

Summary: The ordinance proposed by initiative petition (the “Measure™) would regulate
and tax medical mar{juana collectives in the City of Long Beach. If passed, the measure
would have the effect of repealing the City’s current ban on miedical marijuana
collectives. The Measure defines “Medical Marijuana Collective” to include an
incorporated or unincorporated association composed of four (4) or more qualified
patient members and their designated primary caregivers who associate at a property in
the City of Long Beach to collectively or cooperatively cultivate or distribute marijuana
for medical purposes. The Measure requires that collectives obtain a business license
from the City and that cach collective adhere to certain operating conditions. The
operating conditions include requirernents relating to exterior lighting, signage, site
security, ventilation, product labeling, video surveillance, fire and burglar alarm systems,
record keeping, product testing, hours of operation, accounting procecures, age
restrictions, compliance with applicable laws, and annual reporting to the City.

Collectives would not be allowed to locate in areas that are zoned exclusively for
residential use and would not be allowed to operate within a one thousand five hundred
(1500) foot radius of a public or private high school or within a one thousand (1000) foot
radius of a public park, public beach, or a public or private kindergarten, elementary,
middle, or junior high school. In addition, collectives could not be located within a one
thousand foot (1000) radius of any other collective, except that certain collectives
permitted to operate by the City Council after February 14, 2012 would be exempted
from this specific locational restriction. All licensed collectives would be required to
cultivate their marijuana exclusively within the City of Long Beach.

"I'he Measure also imposes a sales tax not to exceed four (4) percent of gross sales as
reported by a collective to the California State Board of Equalization. Taxes would be
paid to the City quarterly by all licensed collectives. The Measure would require the City
Council to annually set the amount of the sales tax to be assessed. Any fuilure of the City
Council to set the tax for the following year would result in the tax automatically being
set at a rate of two (2) percent of gross sales reported.
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Initiative Messure To Be Submitted Directly To The Voters
The city attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chiel purpose and points of the proposed measure:

Baliot Title: Regulstion of Medical Marijuana Collectives

Summary: The ordinance propesed by initistive petition (the “Measure”) would regulate and tax medical
marijuana coliectives in the City of Long Beach. If passed, the measure would have the effectof repealing the
City’s current ban on medical marijuana collectives, The measure defines “Medical Marijuana Collective”
to include an incorporated or unincorporated associntion composed of four (4) or more qualified patient
members and their designated primary careglvers who assoclate at a property in the City of Long Beach to
collectively or cooperatively cultivate or distribute marijuana for medical purposes, The Measure requires
that collectives obtain & buginess cense from the City and that each collective adhere to certain operating
conditions. The opersting conditions include requirements relating to- exterior lighting, signage, site
security, ventilation, product labeling, video surveillanee, fire and burglar alarm systems, record keeping,
product testing, howrs of operation, accounting procedures, age restrietions, compilance with applicable
laws, and annual reporting to the City.

Collectives wonld not be aliowed to locate in aveas that are zoned exclusively for residential use and would
not be allowed to operate within a one thousand five handred (1500) foot radius of a public or private high
school or within a one thousand (1000) foet radius of a public park, public beach, or a public or private
kindergarten, elementary, middle, or junior high schiool. In addition, collectives could nof he lecated within
a one thousand foot (1000) radius of any other collective, except that certain collectives permitted to operate
by the City Council after February 14, 2012 would be exompted from this specific locational restriction.
All licensed collectives would be required to cultivate their marijuana exclusively within the City of Long
Beach, ‘

The Measure also imposes 4 sales tax not to axceed four (4) percent of 2ross sales as reported by a collective
to the California State Board of Equalization. Taxes would be paid to the city quarterly by all licensed
collectives. The Measure would vequire the City Council to annually set the amount of the sales tax to
be assessed. Any failure of the City Council to set the tax for the following year would result in the tax
asutematically heing get at a rate of twe (2) pereeni of gross gales reported.

We the voters ol the City of Long Beach Calitoenia reguest that the ordinanes be submitted immediately to a
vote of the people at a special election,
The People of the Cily of Long Beach do ordain as (ollows:

Shall a batlol measurs be submittad (o (he voters of the Clty of Lot J3each at 3 special myticlpal election that will allaw Madicsl Mar(juana
Collectives to operats in the City of Lang Deach?

1f approved by the voters of the City of Long Beach, that measure (hevzinafter, the “Measure™) shall add the foliowing subaection to Chapter
380,243 Taxes en Service, of the Long Beach Municipal Code:
Chapter 3.20.243A,

(1) An additional tax (hereinafiar, the “Tax™) shall be inposed on a licenaed Medical Mavijuana Callactive, and shall not excead four (4) per
cant ol gross sales ax veporred 1o the Callfornia S1ae Bogy of 1igualizaion. The Tax shall be paid quirterly to the Clly of Long Beash and
withitt fen (10) days af liling a ceport of guarterty sales 10 the Stite Bosrd of Bqualimtion, A copy of (et report shall nocompany the Tox
payment to the City of [.ong Bench,

(n} The Tax shall be set annually by the City Council, and eny feilure of the City Councl to set the Tax for the following calendar year 4,
shall automatically set the Tax rate for that year at iwo (2) per cent of the gross sales as teporiud Lo (e State Boamd of Equalization on
& quareily basls for thal year.
The Measure shall also amend, in ity entirety, Chapter 5,89 of the Long Besch Municipal Code as follows:
Chapter 5,39 MEDICAL MARIJUANA COLLECTIVE
588010  Purposs and (ntent
A, Itis the purpose and intent of thiz Chapter is to promote the public health, gafety and  welface of the rasidents of the Clly of Long Beach.
The Compassionate Use Act (Cal. Health & Safety Code §11362.5) and the Medical Marijuana Program Act (Cal. T loalih & Safay Cods §11362.765)
do not interfore with a patient's right to vso wadical marfjusna as smhorized under e Law (a8 defined balow), nor do they ceimmiadize the
possession of eitlivavian of Madleal Marjuana (as defined below) by clagses of persons who are authorized to do so under State Luw. Only Qumaiitied
Pritent Members (as detined below), persens with identification cards, and primery carcyivers may legally cultivate medical marijuana collectively
under State Law. Medical Marijuana Collectivea (ag defincd below) shall comiply with atl provigions of' the Long Beacly Municipal Code, Statc Law,
and all ather applicable local and atate laws.
Mothing it this Chaptar paemits activites that are bansed by faderal, sate, or local law,
A.8K0E5  Definitiony
Unless the particular provision or the context otherwise requires, the definitions and provigions in this Seation shall govern the construction,
menring, and application of worde and phrases as used in thie Chaptcr.
A, “Aptending Physician” shall have the same definition as provided in Cal. Health and Safely Cede Section §11362.7 (as may be
amended), which defines “Attending Physician™ ag an individual (1) who possesses a lcetse In gond starding (o practiee medicine
or osteapathy isaned by the Medical Board of Califord ot the Ostsopathie Medical Board of Califomia, and (2) whe has taken
vesponstbllity for an aspect of the medical care, ireatment, dingnosts, counseling, or referral of a patient and who has conducted
medical sxamination of that patisnt before revording in the patient’s medical record the phiysician’s ssscssment of whether the patient
has & serious medical condition and whether the medieal use of marijuana is appropriate,
B.  “Buginogs License” shall moan the license issned by the Divestor of Finaneial Management to a Collective that has applied for a City
af Long Beach business license In secordatce with thig Chapter,
€. “Chief of Police” shall mesn the Chisf of the Long Beach Police Department (or his or her designee).

n, “Coneentrated Cannabis”™ shall have the sume definition as provided in Cal. Health and Safety Code §11006.5 (as may be amended),
which defines “Concenirated Cannabis” as the separated resin, whether erude or purified, obtained from narijuana,
I “Director of Finnacinl Management™ shall mean the Dircctor of Finencial Manegement for the City of Long Baach (or hig ot her
desipnec).
N “Edible Mcdical Matijuana” shall mean any article used for heman food, dilok, confectivnery, comimen( or ghewing gum

(ragardless of whather that article is shmiple, wmixed or compound) that {13 conmins physicinn-recommended quantities of Medical
Marijuang, and (2} within the City of Long Beach at a Collestive in accordance with state law ond this Chapier.
G. “Identification Card” shall have the same definition e provided in Cal. Health and Safety Code §11362.7 (as may he amended),

17
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whigh delimes “Identificaion Card" a2 a document issued by the State Department of Health Services which (1) identifies 3 person
authorized (o engage in te medical use of arljuana, shd (2) identifies the person’s designated primary caregiver (if any),

H. “Manngement Member” shadl mesn o Medical Marluana Collective Member with reepongibility for the establishment, organizsion,
regiatratian, supervigion, ot oversight of the operation of o Collestive, glugding bl aol [imited to members who perform the functions
of president, viec president, director, operating officer, financinl officer, secrétary, theasurs, oF manager of the Colleative,

I “Mattjuang” shall have the same definition pravided in California Health and Snfety Code Section 11018 (a3 may be amended),
which definas “Mat{juana® a3 Cannabiz Sativa L. (whether growing or not) (hereinnfter, the “Plant”); the sesds tharsof the resin
extracted from any part of the Mant; and every eompound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the Plunt, its sseds o
resin. It does not inelude the wmatute stalks of the Plant, fiber produced from the stalks, ofl or cake made from the seeds of the Plunt, yy
ather compound, manutacture, salt, derivitive, mixture, or preparalion of the matnre stalks (axcept the resin extracted thersirom), fiber,
wil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plwnt whigh iy ingupsbile of gemvination,

1 “Medical Martjuana™ shall mean Marjuans used for medical purposes in necordance with Calitirmis Dealth and Satety Code
§511362.5 at seq.
K. “Medical Marljuana Colleclive” (hareinafier, the “Cotlective”) shall mean an incorperated or unincorporated association, sotmposed

of four (4) or mare Qualified Patient Members and {helr deslgtated Primary Carspivers who aszociate at a Property (as defined below)
within the City of Long Beaeh to eoltectively ur pooperstively culilvate Maruana for medieal pusposes or distributs that Medieal
Marijuana to Collective members and Management Members, in accordanss with California Usalth and Safery Cocle §411362.5, ot seq.
For purposes of this Chapter, the term Medical Marijuana “Cooperative” shall have the same meaning & Medical Marijuang Colloctive,

[ “park” or “Public Park” shall mean publicly owned natueal or open arcas set aside for gotive and passive public use for recreational,
cultural or cominynity setvige actlvities.

"M, “Primary Caregiver” shall have the same definition as provided in Califorala Uaalth and Safoty Codo §§ 11162.5 and 11362.7 (o8
may be amended), which define “Primary Carggiver™ 4 an individual, designated by a Qualified Patient, who has consistently asaumed
yesponaibility for the houaing, health, or safety of thet Qualified Patient,

. “Property” shall ean the loestion or locations within the the City of Lony Bench at which the Medicsl Murijunnq Collectve

bers and Management Mambers asscciate to colleativaly or cooperatively cultwntc or digtribute Medieal Murijuann sxclusively for
thig Colleglive bar and M t Members.

0. “Ouanlified Putisat™ sholl miean i person who (1) 15 sotitled 10 1he jeolections of Health and Safely Code §113G2.5 for Pationt
Members, and (2) ruity obtain ond wse marijuam For medical purposes upon the ey fativm of ai Aftsnding Physician, icgardless
of whether that peraon applied for and reccived a valid identifieation Card issued pursnant to State Law.

E “Resonable Cong ion* shall nrean colg tiah o ata with reasonable wapes and benefitz paid to employees of
TRBuquatlifisd nonprofil organizations who have 2imilar job descriptions and dudles, raquired level of cducation and experience, prior
individual eamnings history, and number of howrs worked, Tl puyment of & bongs shall nor be constdirsd “Reasonable Compensation.”

Q. *State Law” shall mean the staie regulations set forth in the Compassionate Use Act and the Medical Marijwang Program Act,
eolified at California Health and 3afety Code §§11362.5, et seq.

R, “Parsonal Ssevics Typa Buginess.” A Medical Marijuana Collectives shall be considered a personal servics fype business i the City of
Long Bench with respect 10 1sultig 2 Buginoss License and sotting taxes.

5. “Sole” shall mean any sale, exchange, donation, rafmbur, { ot baitor,

2.89.020 Businsss Licznas Requirad

It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to cngage in, operate, or conduet o Medienl Marijoana Callective on sny Praperly, unless thai
Colleetive as obtainad and continucs to maintain in full force and offcct a Busincss License,
5.49.030  Medical Mairljrana Collective Buginesz Liconze

Any Medicul Murijunna Colleetive seeking 1o operae 4 Collaetive in the Cliy of Lang Beach shall fiest fill out 8 Buginess Licanse application
provided by the Direator of Finoneiul Munugemen (or Ty o ber designee), 10the Collective's location (a) meels (he general tequirements for doing
business in a commercial, retail and/or industriol zone, and {b) meets the City of Long Beash's building vode requirsments fir businesses tha fall
under the perzonal service section of the [icensing code, the Collective shall be issued a Business License.
5.89.040  Operating Conditions

Ne Medical Marijuana Collective shall be allowed to operate in the City of Long Beach without meeting the following conditions and standards:

A, The Collective's Properly hall not be locaied {n an area woned i the Cliy for exclugive tezidential use. Medical Marfjuana Collectives
shall not be permritted to operats in an sx<lusive residential zone s established pursuant to Titls 21 of this Code,

B. The Medical Marijuana Callective shall not be locatad within a one-thousand-five-hundred (1,500} foot radius of n public or private Digh
Sehool of Educational Partuership High 3chool (kercinefier, “EFHS") or within a ane-thousand (1,000) foot radius of a public park, public
heach ot a pablie or pelvate kindergarten, elementary, middls or junior high sehool. The distances specified in this subdivision shall be
determined by the horizontal distance measured i a straight Hie from the property line of the school w rho elosest praperty line of the lat on
which the Medical Marijuann Collestive is lovated, without regavd [0 intervening steuctures,

€. The Medical Marijuana Colleetive shall not be leented within a one-thousand (1,000) foot tadius of yny other Medical Mirijuacs Collecuve,
The distance specified in this subdivision shull be determined by the horizontal distanee mengured in o sieright ling Fom the propary Gae
of any other Medical Marijuana Callective, ta the clogest property line of the lot on which the licensed Medical Marijuann Collective is
located, without regard to intervening structuraz. Any Collective that had been permittad by -the City Council to operate nfter February [4,
U2 shall be exemptid from the reguirements of this provision.

D, Exterior building ond parking aves liglhting on the Propety shill be in compliznee with all applicahle providons of this Code.

E.  Any exterior or interior siym vigible from the exterior of the Property shall be unlighted.

F. Windows atd toof hatches at the Property shall be sceurad ro ag to prevent nnanthorized entry, and shall bs equipped with lstches that (1)
iy e retemsed quickly fiom the inside Lo allow exit in the event of an etetgency, and (2) are in compli with alt applicable buildi
code provisions,

G. Ench Collective shall designate a Community Relations Linison (heretnadter, the "Ligison"), who shall be at leas olghtesn (18) years of age;
and shall provide the Linison’s name to the Director of Fineneial Managemant, The Lisison shall receive all complalong recelved by the
Diiretor of Financial Management (or his or her designes), regarding his or her own Collective, The Linison shull huve the responsibility
and duty 1o address and prowptly resolve all complaints. To address community complaints and concemns, the name and tclephone number
for the Ligison shall ba made publicly available,

H. The Property shall comtain an odor-phsoiting vantilation and exhaust syslem vo sngloe that ndor generated inside the Proparty iz not detected
outside the Froperty,

1. The Collective shall inatall and maintain a video surveillance syatem thnt monitors at least the font and reer of the Property, The
awrveillance syaten shall;

1. Caplure 8 thll view of the public right-of-way and any parking lot under the control of the Coflective.
2, Be ol adequate qualily, solor rendition and razaluton w allow tha teady identitteation of any individual who commits 2 erite
anywhere on or adjasent o the exterior of the Property,
3, Record and matntain video for a mithmgn of thinty (30) days,
Ench Collestive shall produce recordings from the videa surveillance system to the Polics Department of the City of Long Reach when a saacch
warTLi, subpoena or court order has been provided,

I. The Property shall have a centrally monitored fire ond burglar alarm system.

K. Agign shall be posted in a conspicuous location inside the Proporty edvising:

1. The diversion of murijuang for non=smedical purposes is a violaton of Siata Law, 5,'2 N

&
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2. The use ot tharljuana may dnpsle 8 petson's abllity to drive s mair vehicle o aperste hegvy miglinery.
3. Loitering ol the locgtion af' a Medical Macdjuang Collective Tor an ilegel purpose is prahibited by Coliformia Penal Cude §647(0).
4. This Medical Marijunnr Collective is licensed in aceordanee with the laws of the City of Long Beach.
5. The sale of merijunng and the diversion of marjuana for non-medical purposc erc violatians of State Law.
L. Each Callective shall meet all applicablz atate laws consistent with the protection of the healih, safaty, and welfate of (1) the community, (2)
Cualified Patient Meimberz, and {3) Primary Caregivers.

M. Collsetive cultivation of Médlml Martjuana glall be limited to the Medical Marijuana Collective Members and Mg Memk
N, Cyltivation of Medical Marijuana by the Medical Marijuana Collective Members and Manu;,emcnt Members shall ocour exclusively thhm
the City of Long Beach.

0. Every Medical Marijuana Collective shall maintain cultivation 1ccm'ds agigned wnder penalty of perjury by cach Manapement Member, that
identify (1) the location within the City of Long Beach at which tha Medical Marijuana was sullvated, and (2) the w1al npmbar of Flants
cubtivayed 4l each locailon.

B Representative sanples of Medical Marijuana disteibuted by the Collective shull b annlyzed by an independent laboratory to ensure that
they sre free of harmful pesticides and other contaminants reguluted under local, state or federal Taw,

. Any Medienl Marjjuana whose representative sample has teated positive for a harmful pesticide ot other contaminant at a level which

cxeocds the local, state, or federal latory or statutory atandards zhall be promptly destroyed.

Any Medical Marijuana provided to Collective Members shil be propedy labsled i stie) samplignes with state and local lews.

The upcrmiorl ol medical Marijusny Colleclives shall be limited to the hours betwesn nine o'clock (9:00) A, M. and cight o' clovk (%:00) P,

Any and all busincss identification igna comply with the provizions of Chapter 21.44 **0On Premizes Signa™ as et farth i this Cade,

5.89. 0‘30 Each Medical Marijuana Catlective shall cultivate Medical Marijuana on a membuaeship basis and In aceordance wiil the needs of its
methbors.
5,890,060 Licansa Nof Teansferable and Requited Conduet,
A, A DBusiness License issued pursuant to this Chapter shall become null and void ifa Collective (1) closes or disaolves, and/or (2) relocates to a
different Property.
B. The lawful condugt of activity regulated by this Chapier by a Colloctive ghall b limited to those activities exprassly indicated on (he Buginess
License application.
C. The holder of 3 Business Licenge shall not gllow aonsmembers of a Collective to ¢oitivate Medical Mardjuwanu on the Callective's Property,
5.89.070 Maimenance of Records

A, A Medical Marjjuana Collective shall maintnin the following records on the Property.

1. 'The fusll name, address, and telephone rumber(s) of the owner, landlord and/or legsee of the Proporty.

2. The full hame, addrees and telephone number(2) and a fully legfble copy of a governmens fsaued form of idenificaton of each Collective

ber engaged {n the il ol the Collective and & deseription of the exaet nature of the purticipation in the management of the Callectivi,
Aceeplably Tnns of govemment iysued identiliontion inclyde, but wee not limited @ Tiver licenses or photo identity cards issucd by State
Deperiment of Motor Vehicles (or equivalent) thet mests REAL 1D benchmarks, a presport issued by the United Statea or by a foreign govemment,
U.E. Military 1D cards (active duty or retired military and theit dependents), or a Pennauent Resident Cavd.

3. The full name, address, and telaphone nutwber(s) of each Colleetlve member and Managemen! Member whe pacfoijpsies in the Collestive
ctltivation of Madical Marljuana,

4, The full name, dute of birth, residential nddress, and telephone number(s) of each Colleciive member and Management Member; the date
sach mémber and management Member joined the Colleotive; the exact nature of each member’s and management Member's participation in the
Collective; and the etatue of each member and Management Member as a (Jualified Patient o Peimary Carsglver

3. Awritten accounting of all cash and in-kind eontributions, tafmb ,and ¢ ble & fion provided by the Collegtive
M t Mainbers and metbers of the Colleetive, and all exnendnturcs and ¢osts incurted by the Collective.

6. An Inventory tecord docunenting the dates and amounts of Medieat Marijuana cultivated at the Property, and the daily amounts of Medical
Mailjuatis stored on the Property,

7. Prookof o vulid Business Livense ivsued by the Direetor of Pinancial Management Department, in accordance with this Chapter.

8. Any and all rocords deseribod in §5.80.G70 (A) shall be maintainad by the Medical Masi] Colleerive for a petlod of five (5} ysars, and
shall be made available by the Collective to the City npon requast, auh_[ect to the authority et fmth in §5,89.080,

B. Annusl Reporis, Ezeh Medical Marijuana Collagilve opeeatiog in the City shall submit to the City Mansger (or hiy or her designes) an .
sl fingngial report (hereinufter, the * Annugl Report™) prepared by the Cotleative, using the following criteria.

1. Tach Annual Report shall be filed and submitted every calendar year no later than April 30 for aach pr
Collective’s 2010 Amual Report shall ba submitied to the City manager no lates than April 30, 2011).

2, The Annual Rapott 2hall e a summary of tha quasterly reports lig were liled with the Stite Board of Bauulizion in the previous yewr,
3. The Annugl Report shall document the number of Medical Marjjuana fransnctions that took pluce during the reporting yenr to n Qualified
Patlent or Manugerment Member for cash, credit, or in<kind contributions,

4, Appended to the Annual Report shall be a copy of any and all documents, records or forma submitted to the Btate Board of Equalization
for the reporting year, including but not limited to Board of Equalization Form 401 {or its electronic equivalent) which it any manner documents
transaction activitics relating to the operation of the Medical Matijuana Colluetive.

5. Appended to the Annnal Rapert shall bo an gecounting of the rutitber of Plants or ¢lones cultivated by the dispensary durng the reporting
yeat.

& Any and all resords or decoments thet serve us the basis for preparing the annual report shall be maintained by the Medical Marijuana
Collective for a period of five (5) years and shall be made available to the city upon requast, pursuant to §5.89.080,

5.82.080 Inspection Authority

City representatives (Fire and Bullding inspactors) may enter and igpect thie Property ol évery Medieal Marijuana Collective between the hours
of ning o’clock (9:00) A. M. and elghi o'clock (£:00) M. or a1 any rensomyble time (o snsure complivese ind enforvement of the provisions of City
Codes. The Police Department miy be sllowed 1o entgr the Property if invited by o member of the-Colleetive or in case of an emergency. Otherwise
aceess shall only be available to the Polics Deportment through o properly executed search warrant, subpocna, or court order. |t shall be unlawfut for
#ny Property owner, landlord, and lesses, Medical Marijuana Collective member or Manager Member or any other person having any respongibility
over the operation of the Medical Marijuana Collective to refuss {o allw, lnpeds, abaireet or inderfire wilh s insprgtion,
5.89.090 Existing Medical Matijuana Collectives

A. Any sxisting Medical Marijuana Collsetive, dispensary, operator, establishment, or provider that does not comply with the requireinents of
thiz Chapter must immedintely cense operation until it fully complies with the raquirements of this Chapter. No Medical Marijuana Callective,
dispensary, operator, establishirient, or provider that existed befare this C'hapter was enacted shall be deemad to be 4 legally sstablished wee or 2 legal
nen-conforming use under the provisions of this Chapter or the Cada,
5.88.100 Prohibited Activity

A. It shall be unlawful for any peraon to causa, permit or engage in the eultivation, passession, distribution, exchanye or giving wway of
Marijuana for medical or non-medical purposes except 85 provided in this Chapter, and pursuant to all other spplicable logal and state Iaw,

B. 10 shall be unlaw il for any parson Lo cangs, peanit o engnge in sny welivity reluted to Medionl Marjjusns except as provided in this Chapter
arul {0 Hialth and Sefety Code §411362.5 ef seq)., and pursuant to all other applicablc locat and state taw,

C. 1t shall be unlavfil for any person to knowingly make any falze, mialeading or inaccurate statement ar repregentation in any fovm, record,
filing or documentation raquirad 4o be maintainad, fited or provided (o the Cily of Long Beich under {his Chaprter,

D. No Medical Maruana Collestive, Managetient Member or member shall couse or permit the sale, distribution or exchunge of Medical

ding calendar year (for pla a
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Marfjuana or of any Edible Medical Mutijusa peoducl 1o asy nati-Cotlective M t Member or Member.

E. Mo cultivation of Mediesl Marijoann on the Properly shall be visile with the naked aye from any pubhc or ather private property, nat shall
eultivatod Modical Marijuana or dried Medical Marijusng be visible from the building exterior, No eullivation shall oceur on the Property unless .
the area davored to the cultivation is secired from public access by menns of n Jocked gate und any other secutily measures necessary to prevent
unnthorized entry,

T The munufacture of Cong | Cantiabis (n viotation of California Health and Safety Code §11379.6 is hereby banned,

G. No Medical Marijuann Collactive shall be upen to or provide Medical Marjuana to ih thotabiers o Management Membiars betwaen he
houra of eight o*clock (8:00) PM. and nine o’cleck (:00) AM.,

H. No person undsr the ae of eightcen (18 ahall be allowed on the Propeny, unless that minor is a Qualified Patient and ig accompanicd by
his of het licensed Altending Fhysician, parent(s) or documented legal guardian.

I, Mo Medical Marijuana Collective, Managamait Metnber gb member ghatl cause or permit the sale, dispensing, or consumption of aleoholic
beverages on the Property or in the parking area of the proparty,

1. Wa dried Medical Marijuana shall bs stored at the propesty in structures thay ate aol eotpletely enclosed, in an uniocked vault or safe, in any
ather unaccurcd storage structure, or in a safie or vanlt that is net bolted to the floor of the property.

K. Medical Marijuana may not be inhaled, smoked, caten, ingeated, or otherwise consumed on thi Property, or in the parking nreas of the
Propeny or i those areas vestrictad under the provisions of Califoriia Haalth and Safety Code §11362.79, which include:
1, Any place where stoking {s prohibited by law.
2. Within ong thousand (1,000) teet ol the grounds of i sclioo), vesrention canier, o youtl cesrer,
3. While on a school bus,
4, While in a motor vehiclo that is baing operated.
3. While operating a boat

L. No petsott who hag been convieted within the pravious ton (10) years of a felony or a erime of moral turpitude, or whe is currently on parole
or probatton for tha sale or distethution of' a controllad subst, shall be angaged directly or indireetly in the management of the Medical Marjjusna
Collestive nor, further, shall manage or handle the receipts and expenses of the Collectiva,

589,110 Violations and Enforesment,
A. Any perzon violating any pmvision of this Chapter or knowingly or intentionally misrepresenting ony material fuct in procuring the

licenae herein provided for, shall be d d guilty of a misd or punishable by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars (51, nnn L00) grhy
imprigosrient for not taore than twalva (12) months, or both sueh ﬂnn and imprisonment.
13. Aty person who engages iy pny Medical Marljuana Collective tions (1) after a Busi Licenss hes been denied, or (2) after 4

Rusiness License has boen suspended or revoked; but belors 2 new license is ivsued, shall be guilty of y misdéwesnor.

C. Any violation of the terms and conditions of the Business Licensc, of this Chupter, or of applicable [oual or state regulntions und laws shall
be grounds for sngpending or revoking its license.
5.89.120 Suspension, Revocation, and Appeals Process

AL 14 Clly Deparhtian deterviies (hat a Colleciive has fhiled 10 eomply with any provision ol this Chapter on &l least thiee pocasions, the
Director of Financial Management sl revake or suspyid the Rusingss 1 icens,

B. The Director of Financin! Manngement shall notify a Collective that its license hay been suspended or revoked by means of 8 dated weitten
notice, which shall adviae ihe Collective of itz right to appeal the decision to the City Council. Tl request for appeal shall be in writing, shall set
torth the spoeifte ground(s} on which it iz based, and shall be filed with the Dirsctor of Financial Management within thirty (30) calandar days from
the date the hotlge was matled along with an appeal depost, In an amount deterwined by the Cliy Councll by resolution. Fan appeal is filed, 2
Heengs inay hot be suspended or tevoked befora that appeal bhas beer fully adiudicated,

€, The City Council shall conduct s hearing (herzinafter, the “City Couneil Henring™) on the appeal or refer the matter to a henring officer
pursuant to Chapter 2.53 of this Code, within forty-five (45) calendar days from the date the completed request for appeal was reacived by the
Director of Financial Managemeant, except where good canse exiata to extend this period. The appetlait shall be given at least ffieen (15) calondar
days’ written netice of the City Council Hearing. The City Council Hoaring shall be conducted pursuant to Chaptor 2.93 of thiz Code. The
determiniation of the City Councll on the appeal ghall be final, unlegs the licensea chooses (o file 4 court action within thirty (30) calendar days ol that
determination,

B, Whenaver s Medical Murijusna Collective’s livense hos been revoked or suspended, no other Business License npplication slinll be
cunsidered for thit Collestive for i period of one (1) year from eitler (a) the date on which the notice of the revocation or auspension was mailed, or .
() the date of the final decision of the City Council, whichever is later. .
5.89.130 Operative 1ats of Cultivation Reguireient

Eacl Medical Marljuana Collactive tiat has bean issued 3 Business License pursuant to this Chiapter shall have one-hundred-andstwenty (120)
calendar days from the date the license is issusd to comply with the Mzdical Marijwana cultivation requirements st forth in §5.89.040.

5.89,140 Severability

The provigions of this Chapter are severable. [f any provigion of this Chapter iz held invalid, thai invalidity shall not affect other provisions or

npplications that can be given efftet without the invalid provigion or application,

NOTICE OF INTENT TO CIRCULATE PETITION
NOTICL 18 MERERY GIVEN by the person(s) whose name appears herson of their intention to circulate
the petition within the City of Long Beach for two purposes; (1) Adding to Chapter 3.80.243 A, taxes on
service the following subsections 1 and 1 (a), which sets out the tax cate for Medical Marfjuana Collectives;

and (2) amending in its entirsty Chapter 5.89 Medical Marijuana Collectives, which authorizes the City of
Long Beach to issue business licenses to Medical Marijuans Collectives.

Reapect{ully
Jeremy Allen Coltharp

Long Beach, CASEEE

2%
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Initiative Measure To Be Submitted Directly To The Voters
I'he city attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chief purpose and points of the proposed measure:

Ballet Title: Regulation of Medieal Marljuans Colleetives

Summary: The ordinanee proposed by initiative petition (the “Measure”) would regulate and tax medical
miarijugna eollectives in the City of Long Beach. If passed, the measure would have the effect of repealing the
City’s current ban on medical marijuana collectives. The meusure defines “Medical Martjuana Coltective”
to include an incorporated or unincorporated association composed of four (4) or maore gualified patient
members and their designated primary caregivers who assockate at a property in the City of Long Beach to
collectively or cooperatively enléivate or distribute marijuana for medical purposes. The Mensure reguires
that collectives obtain & husiness license from the City and that each collective adhere to certain operating
conditions, The operating condifions include requirements velating to exterior lighting, signage, site
security, ventilation, produet Iabeling, video surveillance, fire and burglm" slarm systems, record Keeplng,

roduct testing, hours of operation, accounting procedures, age restrictions, complisnce with applicable
aws, and annual reperting to the City.

Collectives would not be allowed to locate In areas that are zoned exclusively for residential use and would
not be allowed to operate within g one thousand five hundred (1500{‘ oot radius of o public or private high
sehool or within a one thousand (1000) foot rading of g public park, public beach, or a public or private
kinderﬁarmn, elementa rs', ntddie, or junior high school. In addition, coltectives could nnt'l?»e focated within
a one thousand foot (1000) radius of any other collective, except that certain collectives permitied to operate
by the City Council after February 14, 2012 would be exempted from this specific locational restriction,
gll liﬁensed collectives would be required to cultivate their marijuana exclusively within the City of Long
SACH.

The Measnres also imposes 2 sales tax not to exceed four (4) percent of gross sales as reported by a collective
to the California State Bosrd of Equalization. Taxes would be paid to the city quarterty by all licensed
collectives. The Measure would vequire the City Counell o annually set the amouvnt of the sales tax to
be assessed. Any failure of the City Council to set the tax for the following year would rezult in the tax
auntomatically being set at a rate of two (2) percent of gross sales reported.

VOLUNTEER CIRCULATOR

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
THIS PETITION IS BEING CIRCULATED BY A VOLUNTEER,
NOTICE TG THE PUBLIC
THIS PETTTION MAY BE CIRCULATED BY A PAID SIGNATURE GATHERER OR A VOLUNTEER. YOU
HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK.,
All Signers Must Be Replstered Voters of the City of Long Beach, California OFFI':C):'I\I.}-I‘."USE

Print Your Neme

Resldanse Addreaa ONLY {No PO, 8m)

Your Glgnatura 52 AgRtArad [ Vet

Cily oF Town

Piint Your Nuina

Aenidence Addrany DNLY (No F.Q, Hox)

Your 8lgnaturs ke Ragiauarad 1o vela Gty or Town
Frlnt Your Nama Resldanze Addrexy GNLY (No RO, Box)
Your 8iginalurc ai Ruglilurud 16 Yotw Chy or Town

Pl Your Navia

Ranjiance Addrags ONLY (No KO TIox)

Vour Grgnature e1 Raglered 1o Vate

'U-lty or Tawn

Rilnt Yo Nama

RAgldance Addraes GNLY (No F Q. Box)

Your glgnature 83 Raglatarad o Vato

Gty tr Tt

Print Your Name

Ruuidunce Addrsu BHLY (N5 RO, Bax)

Your Bignatina aa Reglatered to Vols

Clly or Tawi

Print Your Natwe

Ramdnnzs Addman GHLY (Na 140, lox)

Your Signaturs a3 Reglaterad to Vote

Cily o1 Town

Print Yaur Name

Roeldonge Addross ONLY (Mo P.C. Box)

Your Tignaturs se Ragletarad o Vot

City ar Town

Fxh, 2—
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Initintive Measure To Be Submitted Divectly To The Voters
The city attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chict purpose and points of Lthe proposed measure:

Ballot Title: Regulation of Medical Marijuana Collectives

Summary: The ordinance proposed by initintive petition (the “Measure”) would regulate and tax medical
marijuana collectives in the City of Long Beach, If pussed, the measure would have the effect of repealing‘ the
City’s current ban on medical marijuana collectives, The measure defines “Medical Marijusna Collective”
te include an incorporated or unincorporated association composed of four (4) or more qualified pattent
members and their designated primary caregivers who associate at a property in the City of Long Beach to
collectively or cooperatively cultivate or distribute marijusna for medical purposes, The Measure requires
that collectives obtain a business license from the City and that each collective adhere to certain operating
conditions. The operating conditions include requirements relating to exterior lighting, signage, site
security, ventilation, product labeling, video surveillunce, five and burglar alarm systems, vecord keeping,

roduct testing, hours of operation, accounting procedures, age restrictions, compliance with applicable
aws, and annual reporting to the City,

Collectives would not be ailowed to locate in areas that are zoned exclusively for residential use and would
not be allowed to operate within a one thousand five hundred (1500) foot radius of & public or private high
sehool ev within a one thousand (1000) foot radius of n public park, public beach, or a publle or private
kinderﬁnrten, elementnrg, middle, or junior high school. In addition, collectives could not be located within
a one theusand foot (1000) radius of any other collective, except that certaln collectives permitted to operate
by the City Council after February 14, 2012 wounld be exempied from this specific locational restriction.
ﬁll Iiﬁensed collectives would be required to cultivate their marijuana exclusively within the City of Long
each,

The Measure also imposes a sales tax not to exceed four (4) percent of gross sales as reported by a collective
to the Californla State Board of Equalization. Taxes would be paid to the city quarterly by all Heensed
collectives. The Measure would require the City Council to annually set the amount of the sales tax to
be assessed. Any failure of the City Council to set the tax for the following year would result in the tax
automaticaily being set at a rate of two (2) percent of gross sales reported.

VOLUNTEER CIRCULATOR

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
THIS PETITION IS8 BEING CIRCULATED BY A VOLUNTEER.
NOTICE T} THE PUBLIC
THIS PETITION MAY BE CIRCULATED BY A PAID SIGNATURE GATHERER OR A VOLUNTEER. YOU

PAGE.
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HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK.
All Signers Must Be Registered Voters of the City of Long Beach, Californiy OFFELTQ UsE

Pt Yisui Marme Raaidonss Addrass GNLY (No PO, By
2 Your Bignelure a1 Regstared (o Vola Clty of Towin

Prinl Your Nane Reidance Addrews ONLY (No P.O. Box}
1 n ‘Your Elgnatura as Roglstarad {o Vate Clry of Tawn

Print Your Name Retidencs Addrasa ONLY (Ne RO, Bok)
11 Your Bignature o+ Registared to Vole TRy or Town

Print Your Name Rouldonos Address ONLY (Na P.O. Bow)
12 Yaur Shinstule a Reglalerad to Vots City or Towit

Print Your Neme Regidenan Addrass ONLY (No PO, Box)
18 v Signaturo at Raglstered tz Vole CIy or Town

Frint Your Name Residanve Address ONLY (Ne PO, Box)
14 Your Signatura as Raglstersd to Vols Gy o Town

Frint Yayr Nemea Rosldengn Addross ONLY (Mo P.O. Box)
18 v Eignuhira AR RRgIRtarad tn Yo Ty BT Town

Pinl Yaui Merna Reeidarce Addrezs ONLY {No R0, Bax)
% Your Blyhatura aa Raylatarad (o Vol Sy a1 Town
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Initiative Measure To Bo Submitted Directly To The Voters
The city attorney has preparad the following title and summary of the chief purpose and points of the proposed measute:

Ballot Title: Regulation of Medical Mnrij;mm‘ Collectivey

Summary: The erdinance propesed by Initlative petition (the “Measure”) would regulate and tax medical
marijuana collectives in the Clty of Long Beach, Ifpassed, the measure would have the effect of repesling the
City’s currenf ban on medieal marijuana coilectives. The measure defines “Medical Marijuana guliective”
te include an in¢orporated or unincorporated association composed of four (4) or more qualified patient
members and their designated primary caregivers who associnte at a property in the City of Long Beach to
coliective or couperatively cultivate or distribute marijuana for medilo):al purposes, The Measure requires
that collectives obtain a business license from the City and that each collective adhere to certrin operating
conditions, The operating comditlons include re“ulrements relating to exterior lighting, signage, site
security, ventilation, product labeling, video surveillance, fire and burglar-alarm systems, record keeping,

vaduct testing, hours of operation, sccounting procedures, age restrictions, complinnce with applicable
aws, and annual reporting to the City.

Collectives would not be allowed to locate ir rreas that are zoned exclusively for residential use and would
not be allowed to operate within a one thousand five hundred (1500) foot radius of 2 public or‘prlvate high
sehool or within a one thousand (1000) foot radius of 2 public park, public beach, or 3 public or private
Kindergarten, elementary, middle, or junior high school, In addition, collectives eould not be located within
a one thousand foot (ll}ﬂg) radius of any other colleetive, except that certain collectives permitted to operate
by the City council after February 14, 2012 would be exempted from this specific locational restriction.
gll Ii];l:ensed eollectives would be required to cultivate their marijuana exclustvely within the City of Loag
ench.

The Measure alse imposes 1 sales tax not to exceed four (4) percent of pross sales ag reported by a eollective
to the Culifornia State Board of Equalization, Taxes would be paid to the city quarterly by all licensed
colfectives, The Measure would requirve the City Couneil to annually set the amount of the sales tax to
be assessed, Amy faflure of the City Conncil to sed the tax for the followlng year would result in the tax
antomatically being set at a rate of two (2) pereent of gross sales reported.

VOLUNTEER CIRCULATOR

PAGE. 10/ 17

NOTICE T THE PUBLIC
THIS PETITION IS BEING CIRCULATED BY A VOLUNTEER,
NOTICE TC THE PUBLIC
TS PETITION MAY BE CIRCULATED BY A PAID §IGNATURE GATHERER OR A VOLUNTEER. YOU-
HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK.
All Signers Must Be Repistered Voters of the Chty of Long Beach, Callfornia OFFE"“AL'\"_WE
TN Vaul NEME Reaianes Addresa GALY (N0 PO, Box]
17 Your Blgnaturs os Ragletarsd to Vote Cily ar Town
Frint Your Name \ Rasidonos Addross ONLY (No 7.0, 8ox]
18 Your Blgnaturs &3 Reglatarad to Vate CHy or Town
Frint Your Name Residenc Address ONLY (No P.0. Box)
18 [roursionaiirs oe Ragwiored o Vo Ty or Tawn
Print Your Name Residsngs Addrsss QNLY (M2 PO Box)
20 o e s AR Sy or Town
Prnt Your Name Rasldenos Addrees QHLY (Ne P.Q. Bax}
21 Dipneern it Chg R T8 VR Ty T Vo
Trimt Vawr Nama Restancs Addroun GNLY (Nu PO, Bur]
22 [ Eigeilue ot Rl rad ta Vi Ty or Towr
eIt Venie N mitnmen A AR ORLY 48 173 aae]
23 T Agators ux Faglarad 1o Vol Tily v Town
Frint Your Name Retidanca Adarase ONLY (No RO, Box)
24 VoG Repeead T Vate Tl ar Town
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Initiative Measure To Be Submitted Directly To The Voters
'he city attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chief purpose and poinis of the proposed measure;

Ballot Title: Regulation of Medical Marijuana Collectives

Summary: The ordinance proposed by initiative petition (the “Measure”) would regulate and tax medica)
marijuana collectives in the City of Long Beach. If passed, the measura would have the effect of repealing the
City's current ban on medical marijuana collectives. The measure defines “Medienl Marijuana Collecfive”
to include an incorporated or unincorporated association composed of four (4) or more qualified patient
members and their deslgnated primary caregivers who associate at a property in the City of Long Beach to
collective or coaperatively cultivate or digtribute marijuana for medical purposes. ‘The Measure requires
that collectives obtain a business license from the City and that each collective adhere to certain operating
conditions. The operating conditions include requirements relating fo exterior lghting, signage, site
security, ventilation, product Inbeling, video surveillance, fire and burglar alarm systems, record keepinF,

roducet testing, hours of operatien, nccounting procedures, age rostrictions, compliance with applicable
aws, and annual reporting to the City.

Collectives would not be allowed to locate in areas that are zoned exelusively for residential use and wonld
net be allowed to operate within a one thousand five hundred (1500) foot rndius of a public ov private high
school or within 2 ene theusand (1000) foot radius of & public park, public beach, or a public or private

lI’m located within
a one thousand foot (1000) radius of any other callective, except that certain collectives permitted to operate
by the City council after February 14, 2012 wonld be exempted from this specific locational resiriction.
gll lilcunsed coliectives would be required to cultivate their marijuana exclusively within the City of Long

CHEH,

The Mensure also imposes a sales tax not to exceed four (4) percent of gross sales as reparted by a collective
to the California State Board of Equalization, Taxes would be paid to the city quarterly by all licensed
¢ollectives. The Measure would require the City Council to annually set the amount of the sales tax to
be assessed, Any failure of the City Council to set the tax for the following year would result in the tax
automatically being set at n rate of twe (2) percent of gross sales reported,

VOLUNTEER CIRCULATOR

NOTICE TQ THE PUBLIC
‘THIS PETITION I8 BEING CIRCULATED BY A VOLUNTEER.
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
THIS PETITION MAY BE CIRCULATED BY A PAID SIGNATURE GATHERER OR A VOLUNTEER. YOU
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HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK.
All Signers Must Be Reglstered Voters of the City of Long Beach, California OFF'gm_"Y use
Hrint Yaur Name Rasldance Addragss OMLY (Mo P.O, Bux)
28 Your Glgnatur us FRgikierad ia Votn City af Town
Prim Your Name Rasidence Addrass ONLY (No P.O. Bob)
23 Yelif Blgmaiure 2e Rugleterad s Vota ity of Town
Frebid Yosur Naina Rualdanas Addraa QNLY (Ne PO, Buyy
27 Your &ighatUra ab Rugialsred 1 Vats Clty or Town
Pt YL Marre Reeldence Address ORLY {Mo RO, Box)
28 | Blgnature ks Riylktured [ Vatly Chy of Tawn

DECLARATION OF PERSON CIRCULATING SECTION OF INITIATIVE PETTTION
(MUST BE IN CIRCULATOR 'S OWN HANDWRITING)

I
Long Beach, Califorils,

am registered to vote or am qualifed (o regisler W vale in the Cliy of

Cpuind DT oo o viraidiatar)

My resid wddress is

* " I, . a. 1pY
I personally circulated fhe auached penition for signing, [ witnesscd cach of the appended signatures being writien on the petition and to my best
inforintalion sid heliet, ench signature iy the genuine signature of the porson whose name It purports to be; und

{he uppended signatores were obtained between the datas of | and inclugive.
R T

| deciare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correet,

Excented on a, . California.
oo o o

Signaturs of Civeulatot .

" (eomplete diuialue didienHERIT Tame oF CreaT
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| CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT

Y ¢/ Long Beach, California

LARRY HIERRERA AMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

C{ty Clerk M(mi(iun D Lu Cluraie
Administatioe Qffieer

RIR{TIONS BUREAU
Topram Daypis
City Clerk Burvon Mrnages

LEGISLATIVE BUREAU

Meranne Nakagawa
Chy Uleed Burews Managrr

March 7, 2013

Jeremy Coltharp
7034 E, Rendina Street
Long Beach, CA 90815

Dear Mr, Colthaip,

We have concluded verification of signatures on your petition calling for the Regulation
of Medical Marijuana Collectives in the City of Long Beach. OQur verification was
conducted pursuant to Elections Cade Section 9115 and the California Code of
Reguiations, Title 2, Division 7, Title 5 -~ Election Pstition Signature Verification Random
Sampling Verification Methodology.

Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 8115(e), you are hereby notified that the
total number of signatures to the petition is less than the number of qualified voter
signatures required to find the petition sufficient; and therefore, the petition has failed.

Along with this letter, please find enclosed my Certificate of Insufficiency dated March 7,
2013.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions, | can be reached
at (562) 570-6489.

Sincerely,

CJL;%.}W%?Q“"\

City Clerk

TELEPHONE (562) 570-6101  FaX (362) 570-678Y  EMAIL: CITVOLERKDLONCBEACH. GOV

Evh. 7

333 WesT Ocsan BoulRvait, Losny LEvin, LONG Brack, Catirornia 90802 @
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CERTIFICATE OF INSUFFICIENCY OF INITIATIVE PETITION

i, Larry Herrera, City Clerk of the City of Long Beach, County of Los Angeles, State of
California, hareby cetlify that:

The petition sntitled “Initiative Regulation of Medical Marijuana Collectives” was filed
with the City Clerk Office on February 8, 2013;

That gaid petition consists of 2,473 sections, and that each section contains signatures
purporting to be signatures of qualified electors of the City of Long Beach, California;

That attached to this petition at the time it was filed, was an affidavit purporting to be the
affidavit of the person who solicited the signatures, and containing the dates between
which the purporied qualified electors signed this petition;

That the affidavit stated his or her own qualification, that he or she had solicited the
signatures upon that section, that all of the signatures were made in his or her
presence, and that to the best of his or her own information and belief, each signature to
that section was the genuine signature of the person whose name it purporis to be;

That after the proponents filed this petition and based on the County of Los Angeles
Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk’s patition and signature verification system, | have
determined the following facts regarding this petition:

1. Total number of signatures filed by proponents: 43,169
2. Total number of signatures verified (3% per EC 9115(a): 1,285
3. Number of signatures found sufficient: 939
4. Number of signatures found not sufficient: 356
5. Number of signatures not sufficient because of Duplication: 0
8. Total number of signatures deemed valid ((939/1,295) x 43,169) 31,294

Based on this examination and in accordance with Elections Code Section 9115, the
initiative petition is insufficient.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of
the City of Long Beach this 7th day of March, 2013,

Larry Herrera
City Clerk
City of Long Beach
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Signature Verification Calculations

City Inltiative Submitted to Voters
EC Div. 9, Ch, 2, Art, 1 = §§ 9100-9150

Petitton Title: LONG BEACH MEDICAL MAKIJUANA COLLEG [HVES

Initiative Petition Calculations

Registration (Repartad by LARRCC 5/21/2012) 223,617
EC 8215

Total Elgnatures Submitted: 43,159

Slgnatures needed to quallfy for elaction: 33,543
15% threshold -- EC 9214

The random sample shall include 500 signatures or 3% of

those submitted, whichever is greater, EC 9115(a)
Number of signatures to verify! 1,295
Number of valid signaturas: 939
1,107- PASS

957 - 1106 - WOULD REQUIRE FULL EIG
956 - INITIATIVE FAILS

Mumber of duplicate slgnatures: 0
Number of challenged signatures:; 356 3/5/2013

$05 Slgnature Valldation Fermula

Factors ‘ Description
A Value af each signature
B Penalty value for duplicate signature
C Total value of all duplicate signatures
\'i Adjusted number of valld signatures
Factor Formula
A Total Slgnatures/signatures to verlfy = A 33.33
Ax(A-1)=B Penalty value for duplicate
B signatures 1,110
o B x the nurnber of duplicate signatures = C 0
: Signatures submitted x {valid signatures in
v sample/sample size) = V 31,204
¥ - € = Statistically valid total 31,294

If the statistical sample is within 95% to 110% of the requlred
number signatures, the elections official must verify ALL
petition signatures. EC 9115(b)

Statistical total as parcent of total needed: 23.20%

Initiative Falls to Qualify

Exch. 4
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Petition Statistics
T3 4:568:41FM

LONG BEACH MEDICAL MARIJUANA COLLECTIVES Patition ID:11966

CITY OF LONG BEACH 2013

PAGE. 15/ 17

Total Sigs Requirad 1,295
TO‘ta] Sigs Submitted 43,158
Total Sample Size 1265
Total Sigs Verified 1208
TOTAL CHALLENGED
ADD DIFFERENT ABORESS
Totak . 95
AEV INFO ENTERED BY CIRCULATOR
Tatal 28
CAN CANCELED
Total 15
FP FATAL PENDING
Total a5
MADD PO BOX/MAILING ADDRESS
‘Tatal q
NR NOT REGISTERED
Total 106
SIG MISMATCH SIGNATURE
Total 60
WOIST WIRONG DISTRICT
Totak 16
TOTAL ' 356
TOTAL VALID : 939

DData (nformation Management Systems, Inc, 19622013

RADZ.01

CExh 5T

Pagelof1
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GAUTAM DUTTA, Attorney-at-Law
39270 Patseo Padre Pkwy. # 206  Fremont, CA 94538 e 415.236.2048 » 213.405.2416 fax

April 18, 2013
Via Electronic & U.5, Mail
The Honorable Robert B, Shannon
City Attorney
Artn: Charles Parkin, Esq.
Long Beach City Hall, 11" Floor
333 West Occan Boulevard
Long Beach, CA 90802

Re: Let the Votérs Decide Whether to Regulate and Tax Medical Marijuana

Dear City Attorney Shannon:

We represent Long Beach resident Jeremy Coltharp, who recently filed a 43,159-
signature petition (the “Petition™) to authorize the City of Long Beach to regulate and tax
the mt‘:dlbﬂl -marijuana dispensaries. As you know, the California Compassionate Use
Act! and Medical Manjuana Program Act” give every patient the right to cultivate and
possess medical marijuana.

We have reason to believe that our Petition containg sufficient voter s1gnaturcs
(i.e., 15 percent of the City's registered voters) to qualify for a special election.’ We
hereby demand that the City review all 43,159 voter signatures submitted by Mr.
Coltharp, so that the voters will know whether they have the right to vote on the Petition
at a special election.

Alternatively, in the spirit of compromise, we ask that the Petition be placed on
the ballot of the City’s April 8, 2014 Primary Nominating Election,® In this manner,
Long Beach taxpayers would save nearly $1.5 million that must otherwise be spent on a
special election,

We appreciate the respectful dialogue we have had with City Clerk Larry Herrera
and Assistant City Attorney Charles Parkin. However, we are disappointed that the City
has denied our reasonable requests,

First, we are disappointed that the City Clerk has declined to review all 43,159
voter signatures, because he claims that our Petition fell 18 signatures short of the 957
signatures required’ to qualify for a full signature evaluation, However, the City Clerk's
claim does not withstand careful analysis. In fact, 14 of those signatures were not

Codified at Health & Safety Code §11362.5.

Codified at Health & Safety Code §11362.7 ef seq.

Elections Code §9214,

Elections Code §9215,

The City sampled 3 percent (1,259) of the 43,159 voter signatures submitted by Mr,
Coltharp, Based on a statutory formula, if 957 signatures of that sample are valid, the City must
fully review all 43,15 signatures. See Elections Code §9115. The City Clerk claims that 938
signiatures from the 1,259-signature sample are valid.

Exh. 6 @)

W e R R —
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GAUTAM DUTTA, Attorney-at-Law

39270 Paseo Padre Pkwy. # 206 & Fremont, CA 94538 e 415.234.2048 e 213,405.2416 fax

e e e

counted for an jmproper reason: after signing our Petition, those 14 voters had moved wo
a different address. Furthermore, an additional 4 signatures were not counted due to
erroneous voter-database records. Because our Petition satisfies the requirements for a
fall signature evaluation, the City must review all 43,159 voter signatures that were
submitied by Mr. Coltharp.

Second, we ate disappointed that you have rejected our.proactive effort to save
Long Beach taxpayers nearly $1.5 million dollars, by declining to place our proposed
initiative on the City’s April 8, 2014 Primary Nominating Election. By law, if a proposed
initiative has been signed by at least 10 percent of registered voters, a city must either (a)
enact that initiative into law, or (b) place that initiative on the ballot no later than the next
regular mumnicipal election.”

Here, it is bevond guestion that our Petition was yigned by at least I8 perceni of
Long Beach voters. Therefore, the City must either (a) enact the proposed initiative into
law, or (b) place that initiative on the ballof no later than the next regular municipal
election (here, April B, 2014). See, e.g., MHC Financing v. City of Santee (2005) 125
Cal.App.4th 1372, 1383 & n. 11; Native American Sucred Site & Environmental
Protection Ass'n. v. City of San Juan Capistrano (2004) 120 Cal. App.4th 961, 966-67.

Unless this matter is resolved by Apr. 24, 2013, we will have no choice but to (1)
ask a court to vindicate the rights of all Long Beach voters, and (2) seek all reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to Section 1021.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

We hope that the City will let the voters decide whether to regulate and tax
medical marijuana. We look forward to your prompt response.

Sincerely,

' ng‘f@ £

Gautow Dutia

Cc:  The Mayor, Members of the City Council, and the City Clerk

b Elections Code 89215 & §1405.



